Ref : CB2/PL/FE

R34
L egislative Council

L C Paper No. CB(2)1414/15-16
(These minutes have been seen
by the Administration)

Panel on Food Safety and Environmental Hygiene

Minutes of meeting

held on Tuesday, 8 March 2016, at 2:30 pm

in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex

Members
present

Members
absent

Hon Tommy CHEUNG Y u-yan, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Hon Steven HO Chun-yin, BBS (Deputy Chairman)
Hon Vincent FANG Kang, SBS, JP

Hon WONG Kwok-hing, BBS, MH

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP, PhD, RN
Hon Cyd HO Sau-lan, JP

Hon Alan LEONG Kah-kit, SC

Hon ClaudiaMO

Hon CHAN Chi-chuen

Hon CHAN Han-pan, JP

Hon Alice MAK Mei-kuen, BBS, JP

Hon KWOK Wai-keung

Dr Hon Helena WONG Pik-wan

Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP

Hon Christopher CHUNG Shu-kun, BBS, MH, JP
Hon Alvin YEUNG Ngok-kiu

Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, JP

Hon CHAN Hak-kan, JP

Dr Hon LEUNG Ka-lau

Hon WONG Y uk-man

Hon Michagl TIEN Puk-sun, BBS, JP
Dr Hon Kenneth CHAN Ka-lok

Dr Hon KWOK Ka-ki

Hon SIN Chung-kai, SBS, JP



Public Officers :

attending

[tem IV

Professor Sophia CHAN Siu-chee, JP
Under Secretary for Food and Health

Mr Christopher WONG Kwok-bun, JP
Deputy Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 1

MsHinny LAM Shuk-yee
Principal Assistant Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 3

Dr LIU Kwei-kin, JP
Assistant Director (Agriculture)
Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department

[temV

Professor Sophia CHAN Siu-chee, JP
Under Secretary for Food and Health

Mr Kenneth CHAN Siu-yum
Principal Assistant Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 1

Dr HO Yuk-yin, JP

Consultant (Community Medicine) (Risk Assessment
and Communication), Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

Dr LEE Siu-yuen, JP

Assistant Director (Food Surveillance and Control),
Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

Dr Christine WONG Wang

Principal Medical Officer (Risk Management),
Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

ltem VI

Professor Sophia CHAN Siu-chee, JP
Under Secretary for Food and Health

Mr Kenneth CHAN Siu-yum
Principal Assistant Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 1



Clerk in
attendance

Staff in
attendance

-3-

Dr HO Y uk-yin, JP

Consultant (Community Medicine) (Risk Assessment
and Communication), Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

Dr LEE Siu-yuen, JP

Assistant Director (Food Surveillance and Control),
Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

Dr Christine WONG Wang

Principal Medical Officer (Risk Management),
Centre for Food Safety

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

Miss Josephine SO
Chief Council Secretary (2) 2

MsWendy LO
Senior Council Secretary (2) 2

Mr Roger CHUNG
Council Secretary (2) 2

Ms Camy Y OONG
Clerical Assistant (2) 2

Action

The Chairman informed members that Mr Alvin YEUNG Ngok-kiu

had joined the Panel with effect from 4 March 2016. The Panel thus
comprised 24 members.

I. Confirmation of minutes
(LC Paper No. CB(2)995/15-16)

2. The minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2016 were confirmed.



-4-
Action
II. Information papers issued since the last meeting
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)833/15-16(01), CB(2)858/15-16(01),
CB(2)940/15-16(01) and CB(2)998/15-16(01))

3. M embers noted that the following papers had been issued since the last
meeting:

(@ letter dated 2 February 2016 from Prof Hon Joseph LEE
concerning the anti-mosquito work carried out by the
Administration to prevent an outbreak of Zika epidemic in Hong
Kong;

(b) letter dated 5 February 2016 from Hon Steven HO concerning a
suspected food poisoning case in relation to the consumption of
wild yellow boletus,

(c) Administration's response to issues raised in Dr Hon Helena
WONG's letter dated 19 January 2016 concerning the problems
faced by hawkers affected by the resumption of the site of
Yen Chow Street Hawker Bazaar; and

(d) Administration's response to issues raised in Hon Steven HO's
letter dated 5 February 2016 concerning a suspected food
poisoning case in relation to the consumption of wild yellow
boletus.

4, Referring to the Administration's response to her letter as stated in
paragraph 3(c) above, Dr Helena WONG reiterated her concern about the
heavy blow brought about to licensed and unlicensed cloth hawkers in
Yen Chow Street Temporary Hawker Bazaar (“cloth bazaar") by the
Government's plan to change the land use of the cloth bazaar site and to
relocate the hawkers to the Tung Chau Street Temporary Market. She hoped
that issues relating to the relocation of the cloth bazaar to the Tung Chau
Street Market could be discussed at a future meeting of the Panel and when
the item was scheduled for discussion, affected hawkers and relevant
stakeholders should be invited to give views on the subject. The Chairman
said that he would discuss with the Administration on whether and how the
matter should be followed up by the Pandl.

III. Date of next meeting and items for discussion
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)997/15-16(01) and (02))

5. Members agreed to discuss the following items at the next regular



Action

-5-
meeting scheduled for Tuesday, 12 April 2016, at 2:30 pm:
(@ Provision of columbarium at Wo Hop Shek Cemetery - Phase [;
(b)  Anti-mosquito Campaign 2016; and

(c) Implementation of the Food Safety Ordinance.

IV. Proposed establishment of the Sustainable Agricultural
Development Fund
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)997/15-16(03) and (04))

6. At the invitation of the Chairman, Under Secretary for Food and
Health ("USFH") briefed members on the Administration's proposal to set up
a Sustainable Agricultural Development Fund ("SADF") of $500 million to
provide financial support for the modernization and sustainable development
of the local agricultura industry, details of which were set out in the
Administration's paper (LC Paper No. CB(2)997/15-16(03)). Members also
noted the information note prepared by the Legidlative Council ("LegCao")
Secretariat (LC Paper No. CB(2)997/15-16(04)) on the subject.

7. As the item involved a funding proposal, the Chairman reminded
members that in accordance with Rule 83A of the Rules of Procedure, they
should disclose the nature of any direct or indirect pecuniary interests before
they spoke.

Scope of funding support under SADF

Setting up the Farm Improvement Scheme ("FIS?)

8. The Deputy Chairman expressed support for the proposed
establishment of an Agricultural Park ("Agri-Park") as a production base to
help nurture agro-technology and agro-business management, as well as to
facilitate knowledge transfer with a view to enhancing productivity. He also
welcomed the Administration's proposal to commission a consultancy study
to explore the feasibility and merits of identifying and designating
"Agricultural Priority Areas' ("APAS") in order to incentivize their use for
long-term agricultural purposes. He said that Members belonging to the
Democratic Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong were
supportive of the proposed establishment of FIS under SADF to provide
direct grants to local farmers for acquisition of farming equipment and
materials. Noting that the maximum grant that an applicant might receive
would initially be capped at $30,000, irrespective of the number of items




Action

Admin

-6-

sought, he asked whether the Administration would consider increasing the
amount of grant to provide sufficient financial support to the farmers.

9. In response, Assistant Director (Agriculture), Agriculture, Fisheries
and Conservation Department ("AD(A)/AFCD") explained that having regard
to the relatively small size of farms in the territory (averaged at about 0.2
hectares or 3 "dau chung") and the prevailing market prices of equipment and
materials commonly used by farmers (e.g. cultivator tiller and ridger
attachment), the Administration proposed that the maximum grant that an
applicant might receive be initialy capped a $30,000 under FIS.
Notwithstanding this, funding applications for projects involving larger-scale
equipment would be considered under SADF and each case would be
evaluated having regard to its actual circumstances.

10. Referring to the application procedure under SADF, the Deputy
Chairman expressed concern about the slow progress of the Administration in
processing applications received under the Sustainable Fisheries Devel opment
Fund ("SFDF") which sought to promote the sustainable development of the
fisheries industry. In his view, the Administration should learn from the
experience in administrating SFDF and endeavour to complete the necessary
formalities with all relevant parties and departments before awarding grants to
applicants under SADF, so that the latter would not need to go through the
cumbersome procedures again when they kicked start the projects upon
receipt of the grants. At the request of the Deputy Chairman,
Principal Assistant Secretary for Food and Health (Food) 3 ("PASFH(F)3")
undertook to provide the Panel with information on the processing of
applications received under SFDF including the time taken.

(Post-meeting note: The Administration's response was issued to
members vide LC Paper No. CB(2)1149/15-16(01) on 23 March 2016.)

11. The Chairman said that Members belonging to the Liberal Party all
along supported the sustainable development of the local agricultural and
fisheries industries. They supported the proposed establishment of SADF
which aimed at facilitating the modernization, promotion and sustainable
development of local agriculture.

Facilitating rehabilitation of fallow agricultural land

12. Mr WONG Kwok-hing said that Members belonging to the Hong
Kong Federation of Trade Unions supported the implementation of the New
Agriculture Policy ("NAP") and the proposed establishment of SADF.
According to his understanding, as at mid-2013, there were some 3 700
hectares of fallow agricultural land in Hong Kong. He was concerned how




Action

-7-

the establishment of SADF would facilitate rehabilitation of fallow farmland.
This apart, Mr WONG noted that some farmers and prospective farmers had
difficulty in renting farmland. As at end-2014, 278 applicants were on the
waiting list for alocation of agricultural land under the Agricultural Land
Rehabilitation Scheme administered by AFCD and the average waiting time
for successful matching was about five years. He hoped that measures could
be taken to expedite the processing of applications for agricultura land
rehabilitation under the Scheme.

13. USFH responded that to facilitate rehabilitation of fallow farmland,
the Administration proposed to commission a consultancy study to explore
the feasibility and merits of identifying and designating APAs in order to
incentivize their use for long-term agricultural purposes. In addition to
providing direct grants to local farmers for acquisition of farming equipment
and materials, SADF would explore further measures to facilitate the
rehabilitation of fallow farmland and encourage landowners to rent out their
farmland for agricultural use. Funding would also be provided to
non-governmental organizations ("NGOs') or farming organizations for
implementing projects which aimed at facilitating landowners to release their
farmland and promoting agricultural rehabilitation of fallow agricultural land.

14.  On the question of why applicants had to wait for a long time before
they were successfully matched with landowners under the Agricultural Land
Rehabilitation Scheme, AD(A)/AFCD explained that agricultural land in
Hong Kong was mainly held in private hands. While it was for the
landowners to decide whether or not to rent out their land for agricultural use,
AFCD observed that only a small number of them were willing to rent out
their agricultural land. In view of the foregoing, the Administration
considered it worthwhile to provide funding under SADF to NGOs or
farming organizations for (a) leasing farmland en bloc from one or a number
of landowners, and then sub-leasing to individual farmers on terms that were
affordable to farmers; (b) supporting small farmers to rehabilitate fallow
farmland through preparation and improvement of soils, and betterment of
irrigation facilities, etc.; and (c) offering assistance to farmers for upgrading
their farming skills and devel oping new farming techniques, etc.

15. Dr Helena WONG opined that ensuring a sufficient supply of
agricultural land was pivotal to the sustainable development of local
agriculture. She asked whether the Food and Health Bureau ("FHB") had
worked jointly with other relevant government departments, such as the
Lands Department, to devise effective measures to encourage landowners to
put their farmland to productive use and to safeguard fallow farmland from
being channelled to other uses. She suggested that the Administration might
consider imposing punitive tax to discourage landowners from leaving their
agricultural land idle for a prolonged period.




Action

-8-

16. USFH said that the Administration acknowledged the need to put the
protection and preservation of agricultural land in Hong Kong on the agenda
with high priority under NAP. Apart from setting up the Agri-Park and
exploring the feasibility to designate APAs for long-term agricultural
purposes, the Administration also proposed that projects that would improve
and promote farm mechanization and automation, or other modernized
practices that would benefit the whole agricultural industry might be
supported under SADF.

Development of new products and new farming practices

17. Noting that SADF might provide funding support for taking forward
projects that would help enhance the productivity of organic farms or
promote brand-building of organic produce, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen suggested
that as a further step to assist local farmers who engaged in organic farming,
the Administration should consider the feasibility of introducing a sales
platform for farmers to market their produce to consumers.

18. USFH said that AFCD had all along been implementing measures to
promote organic farming in Hong Kong. AD(A)/AFCD supplemented that
the Vegetable Marketing Organization ("VMO") had already developed a
mobile application for consumers to purchase local organic produce directly.
It had also connected social enterprises engaged in food-related businesses
with local organic farmers, so that the former could source fresh local organic
produce directly from farms. VMO was aso exploring with NGOs the
feasibility of setting up a member-based purchasing arrangement to help local
farmers market their produce swiftly in times of surplus to these defined
groups of customers. The suggestion of establishing farmers markets in
different districts and locations for organic farmers to market their produce
directly to consumers was under study. In brief, AFCD would continue to
work with the industry in promoting local agricultural produce.

19. Ms Cyd HO said that she supported in principle the proposed
establishment of SADF. Noting that the local agricultural industry produced
$292 million worth of crop produce in 2015, representing an average yearly
return generated by each farm at about $120,000, she expressed concern
about the meagre income that local farmers could earn. In her view, the
Administration should, in strengthening the support provided to farmers, help
them move up the value chain and attain optimal result in their agricultural
activities. For instance, technical assistance should be provided to local
farmers to help them convert to organic farming and other modern farming
practices for higher return. Regarding the measures to be adopted for the
promotion of organic farming, she asked whether the Administration would
set any quantitative indicators for determining whether its policy objective




Action

-9-

was achieved. She suggested the Administration consider requiring farmers
to increase their output of organic products as a condition of receiving the
direct grants under FIS.

20. USFH responded that SADF was tailored to accommodate a wide
range of projects, schemes or research work that would help farmers enhance
their productivity and output. For example, the proposed provision of a
maximum grant of $30,000 under FIS for farmers to acquire farming
equipment and materials would help them apply more mechanization and
automation in their farming operations. This would go a long way towards
hel ping farmersimprove their farming efficiency and productivity.

Promoting farming villages and leisure farming

21. Dr CHIANG Lai-wan considered it a good idea to promote auxiliary
activities related to agriculture, such as leisure farming and educational
activities. In her view, consideration should be given to permitting leisure
farms to provide catering as well as home-stay lodging services to visitors.
The Administration should review the relevant legidlation to facilitate the
development of leisure farming and consider relaxing the constraints posed
by the regulatory regimes with respect to planning, land use, catering, farm
structures, accommodation, etc.

22. USFH responded that to take forward NAP, a package of supportive
measures had been proposed including facilitating leisure farming ancillary to
agricultural production. PASFH(F)3 advised that FHB would continue to
review jointly with the relevant departments the scope of ancillary uses of
agricultural land, with a view to facilitating the development of leisure
farming. As mentioned in the Administration's paper, SADF might provide
funding support to NGOs, farming organizations or agricultural associations
for carrying out, in suitable farming villages, projects that aimed at promoting
leisure farming as an ancillary activity to commercial crop producing farms.
For instance, a project could be funded to help establish a new model of
leisure farming operation through facilitating collaboration between farms
and local villages. Farms engaged in crop production might open up and
made their farms accessible to visitors who wished to personally experience
farming work themselves, thus creating opportunities for the neighbouring
villages to provide complementary services for these visitors in terms of say,
catering or even lodging. This might help revitalize the rural economy and
preserve the heritage of rural communities, in addition to facilitating
agricultural rehabilitation. The Administration welcomed proposals from
NGOs or farming organizations in this regard.



Action

-10 -

Eligibility for funding support under SADF

23.  Noting the dligibility and assessment criteria as set out in paragraph 28
of the Administration's paper, Mr CHAN Chi-chuen asked whether an
individual/organization without any involvement nor connection with the
agricultural industry in Hong Kong but planning to develop an electronic
platform or mobile application for farmers to market their agricultura
produce would be eligible to apply for SADF. USFH and AD(A)/AFCD
replied in the affirmative as long as the projects would benefit the farming
community on the whole and contribute to the sustainable development of
local agriculture. For projects with commercial elements, they could be
supported by SADF subject to the general rules and monitoring and control
measures set out in Enclosure 2 to the Administration's paper.

V. Report on the Food Surveillance Programme for 2015
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)997/15-16(05) and (06))

24. At theinvitation of the Chairman, USFH briefed members on the Food
Surveillance Programme ("FSP") of the Centre for Food Safety ("CFS") in
2015 and with the aid of power-point presentation, Principal Medical Officer
(Risk Management), CFS reported on the major surveillance results for the
period and the follow-up actions taken, as detailed in the Administration's
paper (LC Paper No. CB(2)997/15-16(05)). Members aso noted the
background brief prepared by the LegCo Secretariat on the subject (LC Paper
No. CB(2)997/15-16(06)).

(Post-meeting note: The softcopy of the power-point presentation
materials was issued to members vide LC Paper No.
CB(2)1045/15-16(01) on 8 March 2016.)

Requlation of online food sale

25. Mr WONG Kwok-hing welcomed the Administration's imposition of
additional licensing conditions with effect from 22 February 2016 for
application of permits for online sale of restricted foods. In his view, the
Administration should have earlier regulated online food selling activities,
particularly those involving the sale of restricted foods such as sashimi, sushi
and oysters to be eaten in raw state. He expressed dissatisfaction that the
Administration had taken an unduly long time to tighten the food safety
controls over online food selling activities.

26. Mr CHAN Chi-chuen said that according to his observation, the food
business trade did not seem to have sufficient understanding of the additional



Action

-11-

licensing conditions associated with the permit for online sale of restricted
foods. He considered it necessary for the Administration to step up publicity
on the new requirements and consequences of contravening the requirements.
He and Mr Alvin YEUNG sought information on the number of applications
received since 22 February 2016 for permits to conduct online sale of
restricted foods and the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department
("FEHD")'s progress of processing these applications. Mr YEUNG further
enquired about the measures taken by the Administration to monitor online
food selling activities through overseas websites, which were not subject to
the laws of Hong Kong.

27. Inresponse, USFH made the following points:

(@ the existing legidation regulated food safety and food trade
operations in different aspects, including food operations
through electronic or other means;

(b) section 54 of the Public Headth and Municipal Services
Ordinance (Cap. 132) stipulated that all food traders in Hong
Kong had the responsibility to ensure that food sold by them was
fit for human consumption, no matter whether the food was sold
in traditional shops or online and whether it was localy
produced or imported. Offenders would be subject to
prosecution and a maximum fine of $50,000 and imprisonment
for six months;

(c) to address public concern over the existing food safety controls
over online food selling activities, FEHD had, since 22 February
2016, imposed the licensing conditions associated with the
permit for online sale of restricted foods. So far, some 60
applications had been received, with two of them approved.
FEHD would continue to process the remaining applications
expeditiously; and

(d) there were limitations to regulate online food selling activities
conducted through overseas websites. That said, CFS regularly
monitored the websites of overseas food safety agencies and the
media reports on food safety issues to ensure that food on sale
in Hong Kong complied with the legal requirements and was fit
for human consumption. CFS took food samples at the import,
wholesale and retail (including online retalers) levels and
adopted a risk-based principle in determining the types of
samples to be collected, the frequency and number of samples
taken for testing, and the types of laboratory analysis to be



Action

Admin

Admin

-12 -

conducted. The surveillance results were announced to enable
consumers to make informed choices.

28. Inresponse to Mr Alvin YEUNG's further enquiry about enforcement
action taken against unlicensed food businesses selling food online, USFH
reiterated that FEHD had been monitoring and would continue to strengthen
the monitoring of online food selling activities. It conducted investigation
and would take follow-up action if any food sold online for human
consumption was suspected to be involved with unlicensed food business, or
its source was suspicious. Should there be sufficient evidence, prosecution
would be initiated. From June 2012 to December 2015, FEHD had taken out
49 prosecutions against unlicensed food premises selling food online.

29. At the Chairman's request, USFH agreed to provide after the meeting
the following information:

(@ among the 49 prosecutions initiated by FEHD from June 2012 to
December 2015 against unlicensed food premises selling food
online, the number of successful prosecutions taken out; and

(b) whether FEHD had any performance pledge for processing
applications for permits for online sale of restricted foods; and if
yes, the details.

Safety of imported food

30. Dr Helena WONG expressed deep concern about CFS work in
preventing illegal importation and smuggling of food from the five
prefectures of Japan most affected by the Fukushima nuclear power plant
incident in 2011, namely Fukushima, Ibaraki, Tochigi, Chiba and Gunma.
She found that the information provided by the Administration respectively
in its paper under discussion and its earlier reply to her letter appeared
inconsistent. She asked whether there were other cases which involved
discrepancies between the place of origin stated on the import documents and
the actual origin of goods that arrived, resulting in import of Japanese food
prohibited under the Food Safety Ordinance (Cap. 612), and how CFS and
the Customs and Excise Department ("C&ED") worked in collaboration to
combat illegal import into Hong Kong of al vegetables and fruits, milk, milk
beverages and milk powder from the five most affected prefectures of Japan.
Due to time constraints, Dr WONG could not follow up with the
Administration on al the questions raised in her letter dated 4 March 2016
(see Appendix). She and the Chairman requested the Administration to
provide awritten response to the issues raised in the | etter after the meeting.




Action

-13-

31. In response, Assistant Director (Food Surveillance and Control) of
CES ("AD(FS&C)/CFS") advised that for the two cases mentioned in the
Administration's paper, the first case had been reported at a Panel meeting
earlier. The incident in November 2015 was reported by the importer
concerned to CFS upon discovering irregularities. The importer had ordered
a consignment of 652 cartons of fresh vegetables and fruits from Ishikawa
and Nagano, which on arrival was found to contain 90 cartons of radish from
Chiba and 40 cartons of cabbage from Ibaraki on top of those from the other
two prefectures. CFS was informed about the discrepancy by the importer,
though CFS would have detected the discrepancy during inspection of the
consignment planned to be held at alater date. CFS immediately marked and
sedled all the illegally imported products stored in the warehouse of the
importer. None of the products had entered the market. Samples of the
products concerned were taken for testing of radiation levels and the results
were satisfactory. Subsequently, CFS had asked the Consulate-General of
Japan to remind their exporters not to export food under the prohibition order.

32. The Deputy Chairman expressed concern about the safety of
vegetables imported from the Mainland which were directly distributed to
retall outlets, instead of distributing through Government vegetable wholesale
markets or VMO. In his view, there was a need for CFS and C&ED to
enhance the routine inspection at control points over vegetable vehicles,
targeting in particular vehicles carrying vegetables for direct sde. In
response, USFH reiterated that CFS took food samples at the import,
wholesale and retail levels for testing under FSP. The Administration would
consider the Deputy Chairman's views and suggestions in this regard.

33. The Deputy Chairman sought information on follow-up actions taken
by the Administration upon discovering that there were unsatisfactory food
samples through its regular FSPs. AD(FS&C)/CFS advised that the
Administration would trace the sources of the unsatisfactory samples and
notify the authorities in the places of origin to take follow-up actions. CFS
would concurrently inform the retailers concerned of the irregularities and
require them to stop selling and dispose of the foods in question immediately.
The products in question would be suspended from import into Hong Kong
until CFS was satisfied with the reports of the importers or manufacturers on
remedial actions.

Reporting channels under FSP

34. Mr Alan LEONG opined that although CFS reviewed and adjusted its
inspection plan from time to time based on risk assessment and inspection
findings, closer surveillance of different food items should be maintained.
In his view, a hotline or alternative convenient channels should be made




Action

-14 -

available for the public to report suspected food incidents. This would
mobilize the public in monitoring the situation. He suggested the
Administration step up its promotion and publicity efforts to raise the public
awareness of food safety issues. Posters showing relevant information, such
as the hotline number, should be displayed in conspicuous locations of public
markets and supermarkets. In response, USFH advised that members of the
public were welcomed to report suspected food incidents via the Government
hotline 1823, FEHD's 24-hour hotline 2868 0000 or CFS' website. Efforts
would be made to encourage members of the public to report food incidents
to CFS.

Sale of chilled chickensin Hong Kong

35. Mr WONG Kwok-hing said that at present, chilled chickens for salein
Hong Kong needed to be individually packed in a bag bearing a security
hologram label. The chicken was not allowed to be removed from the bag at
any time until the consumer opened it after purchase. To provide consumers,
in particular the elderly and smal size families, with more choices,
Mr WONG asked whether the Administration would consider reviewing the
packaging and labelling requirements in relation to chilled chickens, so that
they could be sold either in whole or in part at retail outlets, depending on
customers needs. The Chairman recalled that the suggestion had been put
forward to the Administration years ago. He hoped that the Administration
would give serious consideration to this suggestion. AD(FS& C)/CFS said
that the Administration would take members views and suggestions into
consideration.

(As the Chairman had to leave the meeting for other commitments, the
Deputy Chairman took over the chair at thisjuncture.)

VI. Implementation of the Nutrition Labelling Scheme
(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)997/15-16(07) and (08))

36. Attheinvitation of the Deputy Chairman, USFH gave an update on the
implementation of the Nutrition Labelling Scheme ("NLS") which had come
into effect on 1 July 2010 and the requirements on nutritional composition
and nutrition labelling of infant formulae which had been in force since
13 December 2015, details of which were set out in the Administration's
paper (LC Paper No. CB(2)997/15-16(07)).



Action

-15-

Nutrition labelling reguirement on genetically modified food

37. Dr Helena WONG said that at present, there was no labelling system in
Hong Kong for genetically modified ("GM") food. In her view, to further
enhance the food safety control over GM food (e.g. corn and soya bean), the
Administration should consider making it a mandatory requirement for food
traders/manufacturers to have GM food clearly labelled so that consumers
were informed when they chose the food.

38. Consultant (Community Medicine) (Risk Assessment and
Communication) of CFS ("Consultant/CFS") advised that:

(@ CFShad introduced in 2006 the Voluntary Genetically Modified
Food Labelling Scheme by issuing the "Guidelines on Voluntary
Labelling of Genetically Modified Food" ("the Guidelines").
The Guidelines, setting out the principles underlying the
recommended |abelling approaches for GM food, recommended
the trade to label food items with 5% or more GM materials in
their food ingredients with positive labels and to use negative
labels without absolute terms only when the declaration was
substantiated by documentation. Traders were encouraged to
adopt the Guidelines; and

(b) to provide a mechanism to further enhance the food safety
control over GM food and to provide the legal basis for
preventing unauthorized GM products from entering the local
market, the Administration was considering regulating GM food
by introducing a mandatory pre-market safety assessment
scheme ("PMSAS') in Hong Kong. Under the proposed
PMSAS, a GM food developer who intended to place a GM food
on the local market would be required to submit an application
together with the necessary supporting documentation to CFS
for evaluation. CFS would determine whether the GM food
developer had adequately addressed the safety issues based on
Codex principles and guidelines. Food which consisted of, or
was derived from, GM microorganisms, plants and animals,
must pass the safety assessment before it might be sold in Hong
Kong. The Administration would embark on a public
consultation before deciding on the details of PMSAS and its
implementation timetable.

39. In response to Dr Helena WONG's enquiry on whether the
Administration had any legidlative plan to implement a mandatory GM food
labelling scheme, USFH said that CFS would work according to priorities,



Action

-16 -

and the Administration would review the effectiveness of the voluntary GM
food labelling scheme and monitor international developments before
deciding on the way forward.

40. Consultant/CFS added that CFS and the Consumer Council had jointly
conducted two studies on GM ingredients in corn/corn-based products and
soya bean, to assess whether these products, commonly found to have GM
ingredients, followed the recommendations set out in the Guidelines. Two
articles on the findings of the studies were subsequently published in the
Choice Magazine. As there were samples of food items without proper
labelling of their GM ingredients, the traders/manufacturers concerned were
reminded to follow the requirements stipulated in the Guidelines to label all
GM ingredients on their GM food. The Administration would continue to
promote the voluntary GM food labelling scheme to the trade.

41. Responding to Dr Helena Wong's follow-up question, Consultant/CFS
said that there were currently 50 or more types of GM foods available on the
international market. As corn and soya bean were the most common GM
food consumed in Hong Kong, studies on these two products had been
conducted. For others, the Administration had not conducted any study.

Public education on healthier food choices

42. The Deputy Chairman held the view that there was a need to enhance
public understanding about the impact of over- or under-consumption of the
nutrient content (i.e. the seven core nutrients, namely protein, carbohydrates,
total fat, saturated fat, trans fat, sodium and sugars) listed on the nutrition
labels. Enquiring about the publicity and public education work on nutrition
labelling conducted so far by the Administration, he opined that in order to
yield the desired outcome and enhance the effectiveness, publicity and public
educational programmes to be carried out should be focused and topic
specific.

43. USFH responded that the Administration had all along been working
hard and would continue to educate the public on how to make use of the
information on nutrition labels to make healthier food choices. CFS worked
through a variety of publicity and education programmes towards enhancing
public understanding of NLS and motivating behavioural changes among
consumers to help them make good use of the nutrition information on labels
for healthier food choices. Appreciating the Deputy Chairman's concern,
USFH said that CFS would take into account his suggestions in devising
future programmes. Moreover, it would continue to coordinate with the
Committee on Reduction of Salt and Sugar in Food in launching public
educational programmes.



Action

Admin

-17 -

44. At the request of the Deputy Chairman, USFH undertook to provide
detailed information on the publicity and educational programmes conducted
by CFS to enhance public understanding of NLS and to educate consumers
on how to make use of the information available on nutrition labels to make
healthier food choices.

VII. Any other business

45.  There being no other business, the meeting ended at 4:20 pm.

Council Business Division 2
Legislative Council Secretariat
4 May 2016




0o
Appendix

ST L 8
TR AR REBEOHEIS09-914 8

. e ::Z—E ‘%‘ ?.:'% B i’“)f‘“ % JTE’ Room 909-914, 9/F, Legislative Council Compk
e =F = 3 ) = ook &2 I T, ”

1 Legislative Council Road, Central, Mong Kong
Democratic Party Legislative Councillors’ Office

B Teh 2537 2319
{83 Fax: 2537 4874

EHEBNTHE
EMEEREBREAEASTHEE &
RFANER

Rk E R
HIASEBEEFHRHBERNY 25 F e HEERSREAOHAE

AANBZ N3ASBMAMREREBEEHAEAFHLE @
THRLE THH WIS ERHERRLE R AAHEZRESF
(P ERAEA BREAAKELCHR L——EE B #EF BT
BUTHABIZIERAMAREA R £ 38 888 €35 L
ERREE A

. B RABREHFET PP OHBEREARAEGRERL
03% - BREBETH (RHNBRERRZRELRL) S 2014
#8A 1 BRE®: EFaRNEBEREEIVERERRE  ERX&E
REEMTZEENHZR  AFBTUEEHE > U3 A
A BRERBEAG BB EBREBUOOHHERE &8
Mo B ERAEE A2 & B (Flonicamid)4 £ R4 A
0.0lppm > HABRZ T OHNEREORENAHFTLE
Oppm> M2 B RME £ 9002 HMN B A0 EH-
LH BB EBEERASE 0.08ppm CEABAZ > {2 KRB A
FHERMBHERREN A EERME B TH 2HEREKE
EMARAZTSBRBEFNITERARBRE  TAHLAHTRE
BRI EF €FL2FANABEMUE RELEAHALHBE
RAEHIMERBEABEVNRR e mHmEEH Y
D?PHRETHRITANBERATBEHERRNELR ?

2.3 2015 F 11 AR AAKRZEO KA B AR B0 5K
BT EBRWBENMIOBRBEZRBYME) GRH KL
HOEEFEB EAATIREAAN—MMAHBE A= €FH
BEBOUWAERATART AR E O RLRAMNA
R ? RAREMABEN R R PO ESE o THEE > UL
#HERELAREBETE?




3. REBBMENRKEETEEN3IATBREBRITHNT
BETHOARALMYZAMHOEINHRZE AR AFBEBE
AWM A SLELEBABRNSAR - UBAWETBERAEFA
FHRBERRERS ZLABRADEL?ER FLA
FPERAFTETLEAR THRKRZE Y EIMBEHEREE
LA AKFE?ER O FILA?

A MABEERANERRSEHEAALE T THHLAHLE
BREBBAFFRTRSTEAAEZMESTS ¢ FHEFELE Y
BEZFE O BTEEFEAGHREDAERLKBGERAL
fap ?

Ha BF e EE |






